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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority
1100 Koelle Boulevard

Secaucus, New Jersey 07094

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Sccaucus Municipal Utilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the retated
notes fo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principies gencrally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the preparation and fair preseniation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey (the “Division™), and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. ‘L'hose standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstaiement,




Honorable Chairperson and Members of the
Secancus Municipal Ulilities Authority
Page 2.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures setected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the {inancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of significani accounting estimates made by management,
as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial slatements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Secaucus Municipal Ulilities Authority as of Decermber 31,2018 and 2017, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Eriphasis of Matter
Adoption of New Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the basic financial statements, during the vear ended December 31, 2018, the
Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporiing for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (an Amendment of GASB
Statcment No. 45). Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Prior Period Restatement

Because of the implementation of GASB Statement No, 75, the beginning net position on the statcment
of revenucs, cxpenscs and changes in net position has been restated for fiscal year December 31, 2017,
as discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter,
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Other Matiers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, schedule of changes in the Authority's proportionate share of the State OPEB
liability and schedule of the Authority's proportionate share of net pension liability as listed in the table
of conients be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
apart of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriatc opcrational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with audifing standards generally accepied in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collcctively
comprises the Secaucus Municipal Utilitics Authority’s financial statements. The schedule of revenucs,
expenses and changes in net position - restricted and unrestricted; schedule of cash receipts, cash
disbursements and changcs in cash and investments - unrestricted and restricted; schedule of operating
revenuc and costs funded by operating revenue compared to budget, schedule of capital budget program
funded by financing services; schedule of revenue and revenue refunding bonds; and roster of officials
{collectively referred to as the “Supplementary Schedules”) arc presenied for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
cxpenditures of federal and statec awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
requircd part of the financial statements.

The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived {rom and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedurcs applicd in the audit of the financial statements
and cerlain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in uccordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

WCC
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stundards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 13, 2019
on our consideration of the Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pari
of an audii performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Secaucus
Municipal Utilitics Authority’s intcrnal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Very truly yours,

Q&@JG AWMLY

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA P.A,
Certificd Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

June 13, 2019
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As munagenient of the Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority, we offer the duthority s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, Please read this analysis in conjunction with the Authorify s finuncial
statements, which follow this secrion.

Financial Highlights
e The Authority’s asscts and deferred outflows exceeded its Habilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $(1,173,442) (net position) for the fiscal year reported. 'This compares to the previous
year when assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $(1,019,059), as restated.
o Total net position is comprised of the [ollowing:
(1} Net investment in capital asscts of $3,425,956 includes property and equipment, nel of
accumutated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debtl and unexpended funds retated to

the purchase or construction of capital asscts.

(2) Restricted of $95,060 arc restricted by constraints imposed from outside the Authorily such
as debt covenants, grantors, faws, or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted of $(4,694,458) rcpresent the portion available to maintain the Authority’s
continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.
s Total liabilities of the Authority decreased by $1,622,456 to $9,316,085 during the fiscal year,
Overview of the Financial Statements
'This annual report includes this management discussion, the independent auditor’s report and the basic
financial statements of the Authority. The financial statements also include notes that explain in more detail

some of the information tn the Ansncial statements.

Regiived Financial Statements

The financial statcments of the Authority report information of the Authority using accousting methods
similar to those usced by private sector companies. These stalements offer short and long-term financial
information aboul its activitics. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authorily's assets, deferred
ocutfiows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature
and amounts of invesiments in resources (assets), the consumption ol nel assets that is applicable to a future
period (deferred outflows of resources), the acquisition of net asscts that is applicable to a tuture reporting
period {(deterred inflows of resources) and the obligations to Authority ereditors (liabikitics), 1£also provides
the basis for cvaluating the capital structure of the Authority and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Authority.




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTIIORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounied for in the Statenent of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the resulls of the Authority’s operations over the past
year and can be used to determine whether the Authorily has recovered all its costs through user fees and
other charges, operational stability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Stafement of Cush Flows. 'This stalement reports cash receipts
and cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting {from operations, investing and financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as what operational sources provided cash, what was the cash nsed for,
and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statemients

The accompanying noles to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of
the financial statements, The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic
financial statements,

Other Information

In addition to the basic {inancial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information. This supplementary information follows the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the Authority

One of the most important questions asked about the Authorities finances is “Is the Authority as a whole
better able to fulfili its mission as a result of this years activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the Authority’s
activitics in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report net position of the
Authority and the changes in the position. 'The reader can think of the Authority’s net position — the
diffcrence between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources —as
one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Authority’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.
However, one will need to consider the non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions,
population growth, development, and new or changed government regulation.

G-




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Companent Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position

As year-to-year {inancial mformation is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net position may be
observed and used 1o discuss the changing financial position of the Authority as a whole,

The Authority’s nel position at fiscal year-end are $(1,173,442). This is a $154,383 decrease under last
year’s net position of $(1,019,059). A summary of the Authority’s statement of net position is presented in

the following iablc:

Condensed Statement of Net Position at December 31, 2018
With Comparative Prior Year Balances

Current and Non-current Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Long-term Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Peferred Inflows of Resources
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Netf Position

FY 2018

5,718,904
4,515,038

PP b e B Y

10,233,942

B st WAy

1,328,090
8,423,330
892,755

—

9.316.085

BT LA

3.419.389

B

3,425,956
95,060
{4.694.458)

(1,173.442)

Restated
FY 2017

5,010,789
4.739.640
10.350.429

—_—am e Ty T

1,358,199
10,106,585

831.956
10,938,541

———

1.789.146

—— s

3,567,217
88,523
(4.674.799)

(1,019.059)

Deltar
Change

{08,115

(224,602)
{116,487}

(30,109

(1,683,255)
60,799
(1,622,456)

421.196

—_ s

(141.261)
6,537

(19.659}
(154.383)

Percent
Chanye

1.93%
(4.74)%
(1.13)%

(2.22)%
(16.66)%
731%
(14.83)%
23.54%
(3.96)%
7.38%
0.42%

[5.15%



SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued)

The Authorily’s not position at the FY 2017 year end was $4,660,644. This is a $1,292,135 increase over
FY 2016's nct position of $3,368,509, A summary of the Authority’s statcment of net position is presented
in the following table. ‘This comparison has not been restated to reflect the changes required by GASB No.

75,
Condensed Statement of Net Position at December 31, 2017
With Comparative Prior Year Balances
Dollar
FY 2017 FY 2416 Change
Current and Non-current Assets 3,610,789 4561811 1.048,978
Capital Assets 4.739.640 4,891,814 (152.174)
Total Assets 10,350,429 9,453,625 866,804
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,3157.365 1,793,599 (436,234)
Long-term Liabilities 5,241 911 6,418,504 (1,176,593)
Other Liabilities 831.956 1.321.712 {489,756
Total Liabilittes 6.073.867 7.740.216 (1,666,349}
Deferred Inflows of Resources 973.283 138.499 834.784
Net Investment in Capitat Assels 3,567,217 3,081,080 486,137
Restricted 88,523 57,664 (9.141)
Unrestricted 1,004,904 189,765 815,139
Total Net Position 4,660,644 3.368.509 1,292,135

Percent
Change

22.99%
(3.11)%
9.49%

(24.32)%
(18.33)%
(37.05)%
(21.53)%
602.74%
15.78%
(9.36)%
429.55%

38.36%




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus})

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Position for the Year Ending

December 31, 2018 with Comparative Prior Year Balances

Opcrating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
‘T'otal Revenues

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses
Other Non-opcrating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

Prior Perind Adjustment

Ending Net Position

FY 2018

3,883,725
81.267
3,964,992

298,765
3,801,977
18.633

4,119,375

(154,383)

(1,019,059

(L173442)

Restated
FY 2017

348,942
3,914,326
30,766
4,294.034

1,292,135
3,368,509
(5.679.703)
{1.619.05%

Dollar
Change

(1,476,162)
(145.015)
(1.621,177)
(50,177)
(112,349)

(12.133)
(174.659)

(1,446,518)
(4,387,568)
5.679.703

{154.383)

Percent
Change

(27.54%
(64.09)%
(29.02)%
(14.38)%

2.87)%
(39.44)%
(4.077%

(111.95)%

(130.25)%

(100.00)%

15,15%

The Authority’s operating revenues decreased $1,476,162 to $3,883,725 in fiscal year 2018 from §5,359,887
in 2017. This decrease is due to a reduction in connections in the 26138 fiscal year. The Authority's non-
operating reventes decreased by $145,0}5 in fiscal year 2018 primarily due to the collection of 2 $156,000
grant in fiscal year 2017 that was not awarded in fiscal year 2018,

9.




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSTION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Pegition {Continued)

A summary of the Authority’s prior year statement of revenues, expenses and changes i nel position is
presented with comparative fiscal year {igures in the following table, This comparison has not been restated
to reflect the changes required by GASI No. 75.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Position {or the Year Ending

December 31, 2017 with Comparative Prior Year Balances

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenuces
Total Revenucs

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses
Other Non-operating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

LEnding Net Position

Budgetary Highlights

FY 2017

5,359,887
226,282
2,586.169

348,942
3,914,326
30,766
4,294,034

1,292,135
3,368.509

4.660.644

FY 2016

6,050,570
09211

—_— = .

6.149,781
341,737
3,895,060
61,961
4.298.758
1,851,023
1.517.486

3.368.509

Dollar
Change

(690,683)
127,071
(563,612}

7,205
19,266
(31.195)

(4.724)

(558,888)
1,851,623

1,292,135

Percent
Change

(11.42)%
128.08%
(9.16)%

2.11%
0.49%
(50.35)%
(0.1)%
(30.19)%
121.98%

38.36%

The State of New Jersey requires local authoritics to prepare and adopt annual budgets in accordance with
the Local Authoritics Fiscal Control L.aw and regulations adopted by the Local Finance Board pursuant to this
statute and codificd as N.J.A.C, 5:31-1 et seq. 'The statutory budget was designed to demonstrate to the
Burcau of Authority Regutation of the Division of Local Governmend Services thal the cash tlows of the
Authority for the coming year will be sufticient 10 cover operating cxpenses, inlerest accruing on bonded
indebtedness and cash payments of maturing bond and loan principal.

-10-




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Compsanent Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Budgetary Highlights (Continuned)

The following table provides a 2018 budget comparison:

Revenues:
Operating

Expenses:

Operating
Non-Operaling

Income before Depreciation

Revenues;
Operating

Exponses:

Operaling
Non-Operaling

Income before Depreciation

Budget vs. Actual

FY 2018
Budget Actual
4,563,332 4 462 488
4.,445.751 3,696,249
117,581 115,220
4,563,332 3,811.469
0 651,019

Budget vs, Actual

FY 2017
Budpct Actual
3,182,061 6,983,665
4,238,500 3,733,510
543 561 932,323
5.182,061 4,665,833
) 2.317.832

-11-

(100,844}

749,502
2,361
751,863

651.019

Variance

1.801.604

504,990
11,238
516,228

2,317,832




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Debt Administration

At December 31, 2018, the Authority had outstanding Revenue Refunding bonds and New Jersey
Envirommental Infrastruciure Fund bonds of $1,062,372 (gross). The debt service schedule has a final
maturity in 2027, Full details of the specific bond issues outstanding are found in Note 5 to the financial
stalemenis and the suppicmentary schedules.

Economic Factors, Futare Years’ Badgets and Rates

The Commissioners and management of the Authority consider many factors when preparing cach year’s
budget and annual charges. 1'wo of the main factors are growth in the Authority’s system and new
regulations issued by the State and Federal governments.

Contacting the Authority

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a gencral overview of the
Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the fees itreceives, If youhave

any questions aboat this report or need additional information, contact the Sceaucus Municipal Utilities
Authority, 1 100 Koelle Boulevard, Secaucus, New Jersey 07094,

-12.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY EXHIRIT A

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE FOWN OF SECAUCUS) Page 1 of 3
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET IPOSITION
DECEMBER 31, Restated
2018 2017
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Unrestricted:

Cash and Cash equivalents 3 5,615,738 & 5,513,518

Total Unrestricted Assels 5,615,738 553,518

Restricted:

Debt Service Account:

Cash and Cash equivalents 27,625 27,226
Renewal and Replacement Account;

Cash and Cash equivalents 53,925 50,660
Bond Redemplion and Improvemend Account:

Cash and Cash equivalents 365 360
Rebate Account

Cash and Cash cquivalents 19,251 19,025
Total Restricted Asscts 103,166 97.271

Neon-Current Asscts:
Capital Asscts;

Fand 639,377 659,377
Property, Plant and Equipment 57,768,385 57,710,184
Fueniture, Fistores and Fquipment 741,928 725,906
Vehicles 345,753 345,753
Lesy: Accumulated Depreciation (55.000,405) (54,701,640%
Total Capital Assets 4,515,038 4,739,640
TOTAL ASSETS 5 146,233,942 & 10,350,429

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Oulflows:

Pension-Related Deferred Cutflows 1,326,171 1,357,363
OPEB-Related Deferred Cuiflows 1.919 834
FTOTAL DEEERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,328,000 1,358,199

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statemends” arc an integral part of this report.



SECAUCEUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OQF NET POSITION

EXHIBIT A

Page 2 of 3

DECEMBER 31,
Restated
20618 2017
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities;
Pavable from Unrestricted Assefs:
Accounts Payable $ 441996 % 427385
Payroll Related Payables 52,446 55,838
Compensated Absences Payable 80,830 75,898
Accounts Payable - Pension 223,500 183,250
Total Payable from Unrestricted Assets 798,772 742,371
Pavable from Resiricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Pavable 8.106 8,748
Bonds Payable - Current Portion 85,877 8,837
T'otal Payabled trom Restricted Assets 93,983 89,585
Non-Current Liabititics:
Net Pension Obligation 3,816,253 4,179,539
Bonds Payable - Long-Term Portion 976,495 1,062,372
Net OPEE Obligation 3,630,582 4,864,674
Total Non-Current Liabilities 8,423,330 10,106,383
TOTAL LIABHITIES 5,316,085 10,938,541
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Deferred Inflows:
namortized Bond Premiwm, Net of Amortization 26,7116 29214
Pension-Related Deferred [nflows 1,367,769 944,069
OPEB-Related Deferred Inflows 2,024,916 815,863
TOTAL DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES 3,419,389 1,789.146

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.

-14-



SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
COMPARATEIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

EXHIBIT A

Page 3 of 3

DECEMBER 31,
Restated
2018 2017
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,425,956 3,567,217
Restricted:
1Debt Service Reserve Fund 19,519 18.478
Renewal and Replacement Fund 35,925 50,660
Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund: 365 360
Rebate Fund 19,251 19,025
Unrestricted:
Designated 1,000,000 1,000,000
Undesignated {5,694,458) (5,674,790
TOTAL NET POSITION $ (1,173,442)  § {1,019,059)

The aecompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral part of this report.

-15-




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY EXHIBIT B
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,
Restated
2018 2817

Operating Revenue:

Town of Secaucus 3 3,209 832 $ 3.470,305

Sewer Connection / User Fees 673,893 1,889 582
Total Operating Revenue 3,883,725 5,359,887
Operating Expenses:

Adminissrative and General 576,863 534,369

Cost of Providing Services 3,225,114 3,359,957

Depreciation Expense 298,765 348,942
Total Operating Expenses 4,100,742 4,263,268
Operating Income (217,017} 1,096,619
Non-Operating Revenue (Expensesy

Interest and Miscellaneous Income 78.763 73,778

CUrant Income - 150,000

Interest Expense (18,633} (30,766)

Amortization 2,504 2,504
Non-Operating Thecome (Loss) 62.634 195,516
Change In Net Pesition {154,383) 1,292,135
Net Position - January 1 {1,019,059) 3,368,509
Prior-Pcriod Adjastment:

Cuniulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

{(Implementation of GASB No. 75) - £5,679,703)

Net Position - December 31 B {1,173,442) g £1,019,859)

The accompanying "Motes to the Financial Statements” are an intepral pat of this report.
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EXIHEBIT C
Page | of 2
SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AHTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED BECEMBER 31,
2018 2017 :
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Casli Reeetved from Custormers % 3,883,725 $ 3,339,887
Cash Paid to Vendors 2,131,432 {2,170,112)
Cash PPaid to Employees . {1,528.666) (1,498,987)
Net Cash Provided by Operafing Acfivities 203.027 1,690.78%
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
frlerest Received 46351 16,989
Interest Paid on Bonds {19,275} £33,01%)
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Invesiing Activitics 274176 (16024
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from NIEIT
Other Non-Operating Incoime 32,412 206,789
Captial Purchases and Conslruclion (74.163) {196,768}
Principal Payment on Bonds and Loans (80,837 {635 807}
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (122 588) {625,786}
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Egnivalents 108,115 1,048 978
Cash and Cash Equivalcents at Beginning of Year 5,610,789 4,561 %11
Cash anil Cash Equivalents at Tnd of Year b 3,718yl $ 5,610,789
Amnalysis of Balance:
Unrestricted & 5,613,738 5 5,513,518
Restrivted 103,166 97,271
$ 5,718,504 3 5,610,785

The accontpuirying "Noles lo the Financial Statements™ are un integral part of this repor,
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SECAUCUS MUNICTPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECATICUS)
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cashk Provided by Operating Aclivifies:
Depreciation Expense
Decrense (ucrease) in Accounds Receivable
Increase ([2ecrease) m Accoumis Payabie
Increase (Deerease) i Payroll Payable
Increase (Decreuse) i Compensated Absences
Increase (Deorease) in OPEB-Related Obligations/Deferals
Increase (Deerease) in Pension-Related Obligations/Detferrals

Total Adjusfincnis

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The aocompanying "Notes Lo the Financia] Statements” are an intepral parl of his report,
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EXHIBIT ¢
Page 2 of 2

2018 2017
217,017 £.096,619
298,765 348,942
14,611 51,876
(3,392} 7,819
4,932 4716
{26,130
131,858 180,816
420,644 594,169
203.0627 1,690,788




Notes to Financial Statements




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1. GENERAL

‘T'he Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority ("the Authority™) was created by an ordinance of the Council
of the T'own of Secaucus on March 14, 1978, The Authority was created as a Municipal Utilities Authority
under Chapter 183 of the laws of 1957. Under the bond indenture of the Sewer Revenue Bonds, Seties of
1979, certain funds and distribulion of revenuc were cstablished funds were modified by the Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds of 1984, the Secrics A and B Bonds of 1987, the Series C Bonds of 1988, the Series D
Bonds of 1991, the Scrics A and B Bonds of 1994, the Series A and B Bonds of 2003 and the Scrics 2010
Bonds. The Authority services the Town of Secaucus. The Board of Commissioners is comprised of five
members chosen by the Mayor and Counetil of the Town of Sccaucus.

The Authority is a component unit of the Town of Sceaucus under Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Ne. 39.

NOLE 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Basiy of Presentation

The financial slatements of the Sccaucus Municipal Utilities Authority have been prepared n
accordunce with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicahle to enterprise funds of
state and local governmental units, Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed
and opeeated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body
is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body
has decided that the periodic determination of revenues carned, expenses incurred. and or net income
is appropriale for capital maintenance, public policy, accountability or other purposes. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB is the accepted standard-sciting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporling principles. The significant of the
Authority’s accounting policics are described below.

On January 1. 2012. the Authority adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Slandards
Board Statement No. 63, Firancial Reporting of Deferved Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, which amends the net asset reporting requirement of Staterment No., 34,
Basie Financial Siatements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows from resources and
deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure
and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The classifications of net position
are defined as follows:
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Sceaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continucd)

A.

Basis of Presentation, (continucd)

»  Net investment in capital assets - This component of nct position counsists of capital asscts,
including resiricted capital asscts, nct of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
{o the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are any signilicant
unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt atllributable to the unspent
proceeds are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather that
portion of the debt is included in the same net assets component as the unspent proceeds.

»  Restricted - This component ol net position consists of constraints placed on net position used
through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt convents), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constituational provisions or enabling legisiation.

«  Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the
definition of “resiricted” or “net investments in capital asscts.”

Basis of Accounting

The Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounling principles. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when they are carned and expenses are recognized when the
liability is incurred.

Reporiing Entity

The Authority’s {inancial statements include the accounts of atl Authority operations. The primary
criterion for including activitics within the Authority’s reporting entity, is set forth in Section 2100 of
the GASRB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. Based onthis
eriteria, the Authority is a legally separate organization and has no component units.

Risks of Loss

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies on an annual basis to handle risks of loss
associated with property, auto, liability, workers compensation, flood damage, and employee crime
coverage. Any potential liability of the Authority with respeet to loss claims would be equal to the
deductibles associatcd with the policies and an event, which may exceed policy coverage Hmits,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

E.

Granis

Contributions, if any, received from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency and N.J. Department of Environmental Protection are recorded in the period in
which they are awarded.

Grants receivable, if any, represent the total grant awards less amounts collected to date. Grants, if any,
not internally restricted and utilized to {inance operations are identified as non-operating revenue.,
Grants externally restricted for non-operating purposcs arc recorded as contributed capital and identified
as grants-in-aid,

Inventories of Materials apd Supplies

The cost of inventories, primarily chemicals for the treatment of sewerage and sludge, are recorded as
expenditures at the time individual items are purchased, since they are not material to the results of
operations and financial position,

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria has heen
sutistied,

Property, Plant and Equipmcent

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost which includes direct construction costs and other
expendiiures related to constroction. Land is stated at approximate fair market value as of the date 1t
was donated to the Authority or at the purchase price if purchased by the Authority,

System construction costs are charged to construction in progress until such time as given scgments of
the system are completed and placed into operation.

Depreciation is determined on a straight-line basis for all plant and equipment, Depreciation is
provided over the following estimated useful lives:

Building and Improvements 20-50 Years
Scwer Mains and Interceptors 50 Years
Machinery and Equiprent 10-20 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 Years
Vehicles 3-10 Years
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SECAUCUS MUNICTPAL UTTLITIES AUTHORITY
: (A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

1. Property, Plant and Equipment, {continued)

Depreciation on assets acquired with grants-in-aid and contributed capital assets is recorded as a
reduction of contributed capital,

A summary of the changes in property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Balance Net Balance

FY 2017 Additions Disposals FY 2018
Land $659,377 $ b $650.377
Property, Plant and Equipment 57,710,184 . 58,201 57,768,383
Furniture, Fixtures and Bquipment 125,966 15,962 741,928
Vehicles 345,753 345,753

59,441 280 74,163 59,515,443
Accumulated Depreciation (54,701,640 {298,763) {55,000,465)
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net $4.739,640 £$224,602) 3 $4.515.038

A summary of the changes in property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Net Balance

I'Y 2016 Additions Disposals FY 2017
Land $659,377 $ $ $659.377
Property, Plant and Equipment 57,546,061 164,123 37,710,184
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 725,966 725,966
Vehicles 313,771 32,645 663 345,753

59,245,175 196,768 663 59,441,280
Accunmiilated Depreciation {34,353.361} {348,942 663 (54.701,640)
Property, Plant and Fguipment, Not 34,891,814 (5152.174) b $4.73%.640
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2617

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

L.

Restricted Accounts

Construction Fund

The Trustee shall establish a Construction Fund for the payment of the costs of cach Project involving
construction or acquisition, Gramts-in-aid of construction are required to be deposited in the
Construction Fund, unless the ferms of such grants-in-aid provide otherwise. Upon completion of any
Project and delivery of the Authority's certificate approved by the Consulting Enginccr, showing the
date of such completion and certifying that all required insurance has been obtained and that all costs
of such Project have been paid or stating the amounts to be reserved for the payment of unpaid costs,
the Trustee is required to transfer the balance in the Construction Account and amounts not reserved
for the payment of unpaid costs to the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund.

Other Funds and Accounts

In addition to the Construction Account, the following {unds and accounts will be established under the
Trust Agresment:

(1) Revenue Fund

{2) Operating Fund

{3) Debt Service Fund

(4} Sinking Fund

{5) Debt Service Reserve I'und

(6) Renewal and Replacement Fund

(7} Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund
{8) Rebate Fund

The Authority will hold the Operatling Fund and all other funds will be held by the Trustee.
Flow of funds

All Pledged Revenues with the exception of funding for ordinary operating cxpenses are required to
be paid over to the Trustee forthwith upen receipt for deposit into:

(1) Revenue Fund - Transfers from the Revenue Fund shall be made o all other required
funds.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

I. Restricted Accounts, (continued)

2)

<)

)

(6)
7)

(8)

Opcrating Fund — monthly, the amount necessary to equal the Authority's operating
expenses phus a reasonable reserve (if required) therefore until the date of the next Town
Payment.

Debt Service Fund — semi-annually, an amount sufficient to make the amount therein equal
1o interest on the next interest payment date, plus (i1) the greater of (0% of the prineipal
amount of Bonds falling due on or before the date of the next transfer into such Fund and
50% of the principal or face amount of Bonds falling due on or before the date of the second
succeeding transfer into such Fund.

Sinking Fund- - semi-annually, an amount sufficient to make the amount theeein equal to the
greater of 100% of the redemption price of Bonds falling due on or before the date of the
next transfer into such Fund and 56% of the redemption price of Bonds falling duc on or
hefore the date of the second succeeding {ransfer into such Fund,

Bebt Service Reserve Fund — semi-annually, such amount as may be required with respeet
10 additional issues of parity Bonds {there is no Debt Service Reserve Fuad for the 2010
Bonds). _
Renewal and Replacement Fund — semi-annually, up to $15,750 per yvear until the amount
therein equals $200,000.

Bond Redemption and Improventent 'und —semi-annually, the balance remaining after the
foregomy transfers,

Rebate Fund — at the direction of the Authority, from the Revenue Fund or the Bond
Redemption and Improvemen{ Fund, amounts subjcet to rebate to the United States under
the Code,

Opcrating Fund

Monics lrom the Operating Fund will be applied by the Authority to pay all costs of operating,
mainfaining and repairing the Scwer System.

Debt Service Fund

The monies in the Debt Serviee Fund will be used to pay principal and interest on the Bonds, When
Bonds arc purchascd or redeemed, the amount, if any, in the Debt Service Fund representing intercst
thereon will be applied to the payment of accrued interest in connection with any such redemption or
purchasc, and any excess, together with any amount representing principal, shall be transferred to the
Bond Redemption and Inprovement Fund.




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

I

Restricted Accounts, (continued)

Sinking Fund

Amounts in the Sinking Fund shall be used for the purchase or redemption of the Bonds for which the
Sinking Fund was established. The Trustee, at the request of the Authority, may usc monics in the
Bond Sinking T'und (but not within the period from October 15 through the following December 2, in
any year) fo purchase addilional Bonds at the lowest prices reasonably obtainablie; provided that the
purchasc price, exclusive of acerued interest, docs not cxeced the mandatory redemption price of such
Bonds.

Debt Scrvice Reserve Fund

I required in connection with an issue of additional parity Bonds, the Trustee shall establish & Debt
Service Reserve Fund for such issuc of Bonds, 1o make up deliciencies in the Debt Service Fund or
Sinking [Fund for such Bonds. No Debt Scrvice Reserve Fund has been established for the 2010 Bonds.

Any excess in any Debt Seevice Reserve Fund may, at the option of the Authority, be transferred to the
Revenue Fund or the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund.

Rencwal and Replacement Fund

The Renewal and Replacement Trund will be used to pay costs of extraordinary repairs, renewals and
replacements to the Sewer System to the extent that, in the opinion of the Consulting Iingineer, such
costs cannot be paid out of the budget provision made for such costs. The amount currently required
to be deposited annually is $15,750. The Consulting Engineer may specify an increase in the amount
of the Renewal and Replacement Tund for extraordinary repairs to the Sewer System.

Bond Redemntion and Improvement Fund

The Trustee shall use the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund at any time to make up deficiencies
in the Debt Service ['und and the Sinking Fund and to restore any withdrawals from the Debt Service
Reserve Fund or the Renewal and Replacement Fund. If there is no deficiency in any of the aforesaid
Funds and no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee, at the request of the
Authority, may apply amounts in the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund o any lawful corporate
purpose of the Authority.
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SKCAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR TIIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2817

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continucd)

I.

Restricted Accounts, (continued)

Rebate Fund

The Trustee shall establish a Rebate Fund into which it shall, upon the direction ol the Authority, from
time to time deposit from the Revenue Fund or the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund such
amounis as may be subjcct to rebate to the United States pursuant {o the Code and shall use the monies

therein to make such rebates when and as required.,

Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The Staiement of Net Position reports separate seetions for deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources. Deferrcd outflows of resources, reported after tolal assets, represents a reduction
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as an outtlow of resources
(expense) at that time. Deferred inflows of resources, reported after total liabilities, represents an
acquisition ot net position that applies to a futurc period(s) and will be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) at that time.

Transactions arc classified as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources only when
specifically prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASD) standards, The
Authority is required to report the following as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
ICSOUrces:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans - The difference between expected (actuarial) and actual
experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, net difference between projected {actuarial) and
actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in the Authority's proportion of expenses
and liahilities to the pension as a whole, differences between the Authority's pension
contribution and its proportionate share of contributions, and the Authority's pension
contributions subsequent to the pension valuation measurement date,

Deferred 1.0ss on Refunding of Bonds - Deferred loss on refunding arising from the issuance
of revenue refunding bonds, is recorded as s deferred outflow of resources. The deferred loss
is amortized in a systematic and rational method as a component of interest expense.

Bond Premiums - Bond premiums arising from the issuance of long-term debt (bonds) arc
amortized over the life of the bonds, in g systematic and rational method, from the issuc date
to maturity as a component of inlerest expense.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTH.ITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Sccaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20618 AND 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, {continued)

K.

Operating Fund Budget

The budget amounts included in the statement of budget revenues and statement of budget
expenditures were approved in accordance with the requirements of the “Local Finance Board” of the
State of New Jersey, und were adopted by the Commisstoners after legal advertiscment and public
hearing.

L. Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted aceounting
principles requires the usc of estimates and assumptions that altect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenuces and expenses during the reporting period. The Authority estimates
the usciul life of assets in determining depreciation figures. Actual results could differ from those
cstimales,

Sick and Vacation Leave

Authority employcees arc granted varving amounts of sick feave in accordance with the Authority’s
personaci policy and union agreements, Compensated absences payable wag $80,830 and $75,898 at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.,

Net Position

Net position represent the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and hahlities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings
used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, Net position are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legistation
adopted by the Authority or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

InJune 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board tssucd GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
which 1s intended to increasc the uscfulness of governments® financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain leasc assets and liabilitics for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources bused on the payment
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR TIIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2617

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (confinued)

0.

Recent Accounting Pronguncements, {continued)

provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lesseo is required 1o recognize a leasc Hability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, as a lessor is required to recognize a leasc reecivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
the government’s leasing activities. The Authority is currently reviewing what cffect, if any, this
Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standurds Board issucd GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures
Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placement. The objective of this Statement
is to improve consistency in the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including dircet borrowings and direct placements, and to provide {inancial
staterent users with additional essential information about debt. This Statement is elfective for
reporting periods beginning after Junc 15, 2018, The Authority believes this may impact the
disclosures relating to debt in the notes to the financial statements.

In June 2018, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 89,
Accounding for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. This Statement
requires that intercst cost incurred beforc the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense
in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economntic
resources medsurement focus, As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or
enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current
fimancial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
should be recognized as an cxpenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting
principles. This Statement is effect for fiscal years beginning after December 135, 2019, though earlier
application is encouraged. The Authority believes this Staternent may impact the reporting of certain
intercst payments previously recorded as capital expenditures.

In August 2018, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 90,
Majority Equity Interests — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. This Statement
improves the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority cquity interest ina
legally separate organization and improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units, The Authority does not believe this Statement will have any effect on futurc financial
statements,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

P.

Recent Adopied Accounting Pronouncements

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority adopted Government Accounting Standards
Board GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Posi-Emplayment Bencfits
Other Than Pensions. As a result of adopting this Statement, the Authority was required to calculate
their Other Post-retirement Benefit Obligation using & methodology similar to the calculation used for
pension obligations under GASH Statement No. 68. The cumulative cffect of adopting GASB
Statement No. 75 fotaled $(5.679,703), and was recognized as a restalement of the Authority's
December 31, 2017 position on the statements of net position {see Note 14).

In May 2019, thc Government Accounting Standards Board issucd GASB Satement No. 91, Conduit
Debt Obligations. This Statcment provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by
issuers and climinates diversity in practice assoclated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2}
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures, This
Statement achicves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition ol a conduit debt obligation;
establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing that a conduit debt
abligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting
of additional commitments and volunlary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. This Statement is
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020, The Authority does not believe
this Statement will have any effect on futurc financial statements,

Q. Revenues and Expenscs

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses gencrally result trom providing serviees and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprictary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operaling revenues
of the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the cost of
operattons and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. State and
federal grants for the operation of the Authority are considered operating revenues. Transactions or
other events that are both unusual in naturc and infrequent in occurrence are reported as extraordinary
items.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Sceaueus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASII EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include petly cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less al the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus acerned interest.

U.S. Treasury and ageney obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased arc stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units, The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
arc seeured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks
(both state and national banks) und savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured, All public
depositorics must pledge collateral, having u market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily
balance of collected public funds, o secure the deposits of Governmental Units. Ifa public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the Governmental 1nits,

Inaddition te the above collateral requirement, if the pubtic funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital funds
of the deposttory, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at teast equal to 100% of the
amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Tederal Reserve Bank of New York, The Federal Reserve Bank
ol Phitadclphia, the Federal [Home Louan Bank of New York, or 2 banking institution that is a member of the
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

As of December 31, 2018, the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents are summarized as follows:

Money Market/

Checking

Accounts Toztal
Unrestricted $5,615,738 $5,615,738
Restricted 103.166 103,166

$5.718.904 $5,718.904

The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2018 was $3,718,904
and the bank balance was $5,730,334. "This entire amount was covered by federal depository insurance and
the collateral pool maintained by the banks as required by New Jersey Statutes,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Sccaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASII EQUIVALENTS, (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposit may not be
returned to it. The Authority’s policy is based on New Jersey statutes requiring cash be deposited only in
New Jersey bascd on banking institutions that parficipate in New fersey Governmental Depository Protection
Act{GUDPA) or in a qualified investment established in New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) that are treated
as cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2018, 3-0- of the Authority’s bank balance of $5,730.334 was
exposed to custodial risk.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

fovestments are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected bases. The Authority classifies
certificates of deposit that have original maturity dates oi more than three months but less than twelve
months from the date of purchase, as investments,

The Authority had no investments at December 31, 2018.

Intercst Rate Risk

The Authorily does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair valuc losses arising {rom increasing interest rates, However, New Jerscy
Statutcs 40A:5-15.1¢a) limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk

New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) limits municipal investment maturities to those specified in the Statutes.

‘The type of allowance investmenis are Bonds of the United Siates of America or the local unit or school

districts of which the local unit is part of: obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days:

government moncy market mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government
investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credif Risk

The Authority places no [imit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTITORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Authorily has issucd and has outstanding the {following bonds as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Scries 2010 NJF Envirommenial Infrastructure
Trust and Fund Bonds

Series 2013 NJ Environmental Infrastrocture
Trust and Fund Bonds

Net Carrving Amount of Debt

Curreot Poriton
Long-Term Portion

Presented bolow is a summary of debt service requirements to maturity.

Ycar
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2032

Principal
$85,877
85,931
85,996
091,072
91,159
91,256
91,360
408,838

30,883

$1.062,372

Balance Balance
Dec. 31, 2017 Redeemed Dee. 31,2018
$868,906 564,500 $833.997
244,303 15,928 228375
$1.143.209 380.837 $1.062,372
80.837 85,877
1.062.372 976,495
$1.143.209 $1.062372
Inferest Total
519,453 $105,330
18,000 103,931
16,184 102,180
15,058 106,130
13,371 104,530
11,675 102,931
9970 101,330
22,605 431,443
529 31412
5126845 $1.189217




SECAUCTUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

(A Componcut Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUFED
FOR TIIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2618 AND 2617

NOTEL 5. LONG-TERM DEBT, {continued)

Series 2010 NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

OnMarch 10,2010, the Authority issued $1,356,541 Series 2010 Subordinate Bonds through the New Jerscy
Invironmental Infrastructure Trust Program. These bonds are being used for improvements to the treatment

{acilities.

Principal and interest due on outstanding 2010 bonds to maturity is as follows:

NJEIT SERIES 2010

Tirust Porlion Fund Portion Total
Principal Tnterest Principal Debil Service
835,000 $17,775 §34,900 487,684

35,000 16,375 34,909 86,284
35,000 14,625 34,509 84,534
40,000 13,576 34,908 88,484
40,000 11,973 34,909 86,884
40,000 10,375 34,909 85,284
40,000 8,775 34,909 83,684
45,000 7.176 34,908 87,084
45,000 5,600 34,900 85,500
45,000 3,800 34,909 83,706
50.000 2,000 34,909 86,900
$450.000 $112,052 $383.997 $946,04%
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{A Componcnt Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR TIIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DERBT, (continued)

Serigs 2013 NJ Envirenmental Infrasiructure Trust Bonds

On May 30, 2013, the Authority issued $318,752 Series 2013 Subordinale Bonds through the New Jersey

Favironmental Infrastructure Trust Program.

Principal and interest due on outstanding 2013 bonds 1o maturity is as follows:

NHIT SERIES 2613

Trust Portion

Year Principai Interesi
2019 $3,896 $1,678
2020 3,950 1,625
2021 4,015 1,559
2022 4,092 1,483
2023 4,178 1,396
2024 47275 1,300
2025 4,379 1,195
2026 4,490 1,084
2027 4,622 953
2028 4,761 814
2029 4,907 667
2034 5,062 512
2031 5,224 350
2032 4.425 178
62,276 $14,794

Fund Porlion

Principal
$12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,072
12,002
12,072
9.163
$166.099

Total
Dby Seryice

$17.646
17,647
17,646
(7,647
17,646
17,647
£7,646
17,616
17,647
17,647
17,646
17,646
17,646
13,766
$243,169




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUEKD
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2618 AND 2017

NOTE 6. PENSION PELANS

Description of Mans:

Authority cmployees participate in one of the two contributory, defined benefit public employee retirement
systems; the State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PR S) or the Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP), a tax-qualified defined contribution money purchase pension plan under
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 401(a).

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Timplovees' Retirement System (PT'RS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the
"Division™. Tor additional information about the PTIRS, please refer to the Division's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report {CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtml,

Benefits Provided

The vesling and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PIRS provides relirement, death and
disability benctits. Al benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical bencfits, which ves! alter
25 vears of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following represents the membership
ticrs for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were emolled prior to July §, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July {, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2610 and prior fo June 28, 2011
5

Moembers whoe were eligible to enroll on or afler June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Liers
I and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62, Scrvice retirement
benefits of 1/60a of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and to Tier S members upon reaching age 65. Farly retirement benefits are available to Tiers
1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL CTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUCED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Public I'mployees’ Retirement Svstem (PERS), (contimied)

Benefits Provided, (continued)

credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before ape 65. Benefits are reduced by a {raction of
a pereent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can reecive full carly
retirement benefits in accordance with theirrespective tier. Tier | members can receive an unreduced benelit
from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retivement is availablc to members
who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective
ler.

Delmed Contnibution Retirement Program

Prudential T'inancial joimtly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and
Benelits, Han employee 1s ineligible to enroll in the PERS or PFRS, the emplovee may be eligible to cnroll
in the DCRP. DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution refirement
benelit, along with Iife insurance and disahility coverage. Vesting is immediatc upon enrolment for
members of the DCRT.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of
the BCRP. The financial repor(s may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 293, Trenton, New Jersey, 086235-0293,

Employers arc required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employce contributions are based
on percentages of 5.50% for DCRYT of employees' annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP was
cstablished July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.1.. 2007 and expanded undcr the provisions
of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

Contribution Requircments

The contribution policy i3 set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most rctirement systems,
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer
conlributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds provide for employee
conlributions bascd on 5.5% for PERS. This amount will increase 1o 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased
in over 7 years beginning 2012 of the employee’s annual compensation, as defined by law, Employers are




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Tawn of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), {continued)

Contribution Reguirements, (continued)

required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds. The actuarially determined employer
contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in the PERS.
In the PERS, the employer contribution includes funding for post-relirement medical prcmiums.

The Authority’s contribution to the various plans, cqual to the required contributions for each year, were as
follows:
Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
12/34/18 $174,81¢ 100%
12/31/17 164,946 100%
12/31/16 150,970 100%

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS)

At Decomber 31, 2018 and 2017, the Authority reported a liability of $3,816,253 and $4,179,539 for its
proportionate share of the net pension lHability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liabilily was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The Authority has not updated the net pension obligation, pension-related deferred
outflow, accounts pavable — pension or pension-related deferred inflow accounts o a measurement date
acceptable under current accounting standards for the year ended December 31, 2018. Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 requires a state or local government employer fo recognize
a net pension liahility measured as of a date no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. The amount hy
which this departure would affect the deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, delerred inflows of
resources and nel position has not been determined. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating governments, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the
Authority's proportion was 0.0193821700 pereent, which was an increase of 0.0014275909 percent {rom
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Uit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2618 AND 2017

NOTY 6. PENSION PLAN, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE_FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, {continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (cantinued)

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $206,668. At
December 31,2018, the Authority reporied deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
relafed to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Delesred
Outflows of inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of ussumptions $628,855 $1.220,235
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 72,777 55,475
Changes in proporfion and differences hetween Authority
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 401,039 44,696
Other deferred pension adjustments 47,363
Authority contributions subsequent 1o the measurement
dale 223,500
Total $1,320,171 $1.367,769

The $223,500 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authorily
contributions subscquent to the measurement date (ie. for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018, the
plan measurement date is June 30, 2018) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended December 31, 2018, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense ag follows:

Year ended December 31:

2019 $26.,487
2020 (36.671)
2021 (262.963)
2022 (227.940)
2023 (72.990)
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{A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 :

NOTE 6. PENSION PLAN, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, {continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Changecs in Propeortion

The previous amounts do not include employcr specific deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflaws
of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized) by each
employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan members, which is 5.63, 5.48,
3.57,5.72 and 6.44 years for 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounts, respectively,

Additional Information

Local Group Collective balances at December 31, 2018 and 2017 arc as follows:

Dec. 31, 2018 Dec, 31, 2017

Collective deferred outflows of resources $4,684,852,302  §6,424,455,842
Collective deferred inflows of resources 7,646,736.226 5,700,625,981
Collective net pension liability 19,689,501.539  23,278,401,588
Authority's Proportion 0.0193821700%  0.0179545791%

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension Hability for the June 30, 2018 measurenient date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2017, which rolled forward to June 30, 2018. This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurcment,

Inflation 2.25 Percent
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Pereent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.065-5.15 Pereent (based on age)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2617

NOTYE 6, PENSION PLAN, {continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN TIIE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, (continued)

Public Emplovees Retirenient System {PERS), (continued)

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retiremeni Morlality able for male
and female active participants. For Statc cmployces, mortality tables are sel back 4 vears for males and
females. For local employces, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for fomales. In
addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the Conduent modified 2014 projection scale, Post-retirement mortality
rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Morlality Tables (sctback 1 year for
males and females) for service retirements and bencficiaries of former members. In addition, the tables for
service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from
2012 to 2013 using Projection Scale AA and using a gencrational approach based on the Conduent 2014
projection scale thereafter. Disability retircment rates used to value disabled retirces were based on the RP-
2000 Disabled Mortality Table (sct back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of rctiun on plan investmenis (7.00% at
June 30, 2018) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Penstons and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries, The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return {expected returns, nct of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to producc the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target assct allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
mncluded in PIERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2618 AND 2017

NOTE 6, PENSION PLAN, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION_IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, (continued)

Public Employeces Retirement System (PERS), {continued)

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asget Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk Mitigation Strategics 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasurics 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Hipgh yicld 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Dcbt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Dcebt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Privatc rcal assct 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real cstate 6.25% 9.23%
.S, cquity 30.00% 8.15%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11,50% 9.00%
Emcrging markets cquity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.66% as of June 30, 2018. This single
blended discount ratc was bascd on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00% and a municipal bond ratc of 3.87% as of Junc 30, 2018 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-cxempt gencral obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount raie assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most reeent fiscal year, The
State employer contributed 50% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Componcnt Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6. PENSION PLAN, (continued)

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68, {continucd)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through June 30, 2046. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through June 30, 2046 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension tiability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension hahility of the participating emplovers as of Junc 30, 2018
respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension
liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1- percentage-
point highcr than the current rate:

June 30, 2018
1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increasc
4.66% 5.66% 6.66%
Authority's proportionate share of
the pension Hability $4,798,498 $3.816,253 $2,992,212

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
Financial Report for the State of New Jerscy Public Cmployees Retirement System (PERS).

NOTE 7, OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition {o the pension benefits described in Note 6; the Authority provides post employment health care
benetits in accordance with the provisions of Ch. 88, P.L. 1974 as amended by Chapter 436, P.1.. 1981, at
its cost. On May 13,2010, the Authority adopted the provisions of N.J.8.A. 52:14-17.38 and adhered to the
rulcs and regulations promulgated by the State [lealth Benefits Commission to implement the provisions
of that law. This resolution atfeets cmployecs as shown in Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, It is effective on the 1#
day of July, 2010,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued)

Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, providcs cligible participating local employers considerable flexibility in managing
their postretirement medical costs. It also brings State ITealth Benefits Program (SIHBP) and School
Employces’ Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) eligihility standards tor employcr-paid coverage into
alignment with local government laws.

General Information about the OPEB Plan

The State Health Benefit Local Government Retired Employees Plan (the Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit other postemployment benelit (OPEB) plan with a special funding situation. It
covers employees of local government employers that have adopted a resolution to participate in the Plan.
The plan meets the definition of an equivalent arrangement as defined in paragraph 4 of GASB Stalement
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB
Statemnent No. 75); therefore, assets are accumulated to pay associated benefits, For additional information
about the Plan, please refer to the State of New Jersey (the State), Division of Pensions and Benefits' (the
Division) Comprehensive Amnnual Financial Report (CAFR). which can be found at
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports,shtml.

The Plan provides medical and prescription drug fo retirces and their covered dependents of the employers.
Under the provisions of Chapter 88, 1°.L. 1974 and Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, local government employers
electing to provide postretirement medical coverage to their employees must file a resolution with the
Division. Under Chapler 88, local cmployers elect to provide benefit coverage based on the eligibility rules
and regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter 48 allows local employers
to cstablish their own age and service eligibility for employer paid health bencfits coverage for retired
cmployees, Under Chapter 48, the employer may assume the cost of postretirement medical coverage for
cmployees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a disahility pension; or 2) retired with 25 or more years
of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years
with the cmplover at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or 3) retired and reached the age
of 65 with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement system and a
period of scrvice of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of retitement as established by the
employer; or 4) retired and reached age 62 with at least 15 years of service with the employer. Further, the
law provides that the employer paid obligations for retiree coverage may be determined by means of a
collective negotiations agreement.
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NOTE 7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued)

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P L. 2011, future retirces eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less
than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required {o pay a percentage of the cost of their
health carc coverage in retirement provides they retire with 25 or more years of pension scrvice credit. The
percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined bascd on the retiree's
annual retirement benelfit and level of coverage.

Total OPER Liability

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, thc Authority had a liability of $3,630,582 and $4,864,674 for ils
proportionate share of the non-special funding net OPTB liability. The net OPER tiability was measured
as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to calculatc the net OPEB liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Authority’s proportion of the nct OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the OPER plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers a in the plan, Al Junc 30, 2018 the Authority’s proporiion was
0,023174 percent.

For the years ended December 31,2018 and 2017, the Authority recognized medical expense ol $83,886 and
$293,369, respectively, At December 31, 2018 and 2017, deferred outflows of resources and delerred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

2018 2017
Deferred Qutflows of Resources:
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments $1.919 $834
Total $1.919 b834
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Changes of assumptions $920,845 $539,937
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 737,138
Changes in proportion and differences between the
Authority’s contributions and propertionate sharc of
contributions 366,827 275926
Total $2.024.910 $815.863
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Usit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFTI'S, (continucd)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from coniributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recopnized as a reduction of the OPEB liabilily in the
subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPIIB (excluding changes in proportion) will be recognized in OBE cxpense as {ollows:

2018 2017
Year ended June 3);
2018 $(243,186) $(70,487)
2019 (243,186} {76,487)
2020 {243,186) (76,487
2021 {243,388) (70,487}
2022 (243,716) (76,487
Thereafter (439,503) {156,459}

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resourees and deferred inflows
of resources related to chuanges In proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized) by cach
cmployer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan members, which is 8.14 and
8.04 years for 2018 and 2017 amounts, respectively.

Actual Assumptions and Otler Inputs

The total OPTB liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was determined by an acluarial valuation
as of July 1, 2017, which rolled forward to June 30, 2018, The total OPEB liability as of Junc 30, 2018 was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of Tune 30, 2017, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2018, The
actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plaag the member is enrolled in.
I'his actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Infation Tate 2.50%

Salary increases™:
Through 2026 1.65 - 8.98%

Therealter 2.65 - 9.98%

* Salary increases are based on the defined benefit plan that the member is enrolled in
and his or her age.
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Town of Seeaucus}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7. OTHER PPOST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued)

Preretircment mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Ileadcount-Weighted Healthy Emplovee
Male/Female mortality table with [ully generational mortality improvement projections from the central vear
using the MP-2017 scale. Postirctirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted
Health Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with {ully generational improvement projections fron the
central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount- Weighted
Disabled Malc/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2017 scale,

100% of active members are considered to participale in the Plan upon retirement.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.8% and
decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. Tor self-insured post-65 PPO medical benetits,
the trend rate is 4,5%. For health maintcnance organization (ITMO) medical benefits, the teend rate is
initially 8.0% and decreascs to a 5.0% long-term trend rate afier seven years. For preseription drug benelits,
the initial trend ratc is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare
Part B reimbursemecnt, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will conlinue
in all future years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for Junc 30, 2018 and 2017 was 3.87% and 3.58%, respectively. This represents the
municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal
Bond Index, which includes tax-cxempt gencral obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa
or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less that the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate,

Sensitivity of Net OPERB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPERB liability as of Junc 30, as well
as what the Authority’s proportionaie share of the net OPEB Hahility would be if it were calenlated using,
a discount rate that is 1-pereentage point lower or I percentage point higher than the current rate:
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

FOR TIIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued)

Authority's proportionate share of
Net OPEB liability

Authority's proportionate share of
Net OPEB liability

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rates:

June 30. 2018

1% At Curremt 1%4%
Decrease Piscount Rate Increase
2.87% 3.87% 4.87%
$4,259,633 83,630,582 $3,128,113
June 30, 2017
1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
4.00% 3.00% 6.00%
$5,738.028 $4,864,674 $4,171,682

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPTT liability as of June 30, as well
as what the Authority’s proportionatc sharce of the net OPER liability would be if it were calculated using
a healthcare trend rate that is I-percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rale:

Authority's proportionate share of
Net OPED liability

Authority’s proportionate sharc of’
Net OPEB liability

June 30. 2018

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Daecerease ‘Trend Rate Encrease
$3,028,488 $3,630,582 $4,409,782
June 3¢, 2017
1% Tlealthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
$4,042.686 $4.864,674 85,934,998
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Componcnt Unit of the Town of Secaucus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS FENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NQTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Authority’s attorneys have informed management of no commitments or contingent liabilities.

NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Secaucus Municipal Utililies Authority is cxposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of asscts; crrors and omissions; injuries to employees: and natural disasters.

Properity and Liability Insurange

The Authority is currently a member of the New Jersey Utility Authorities Joint Insurance Fund, a public
entity risk pool currently composed of 46 member authorities. The Fund provides members with Property,
Liability and Worker's Compensation Insurance. The Authority continues to carry Public Officials Liability
and Public Employee Dishonesty insurance through outside policies.

NOTE 10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees of the Sccaucus Municipal Utilities Authority may participate in a deferred compensation plan
adopted under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with
Respect to Service [or State and Local Government). The deferred compensation plan is available to all
employees of the Authority. Under the plan, cmployees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and
avold paying taxes on the deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount
is not available for withdrawal by cmployees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency, The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. The
employees” contributions to the Plan and all income attributable to those amounts have been transterred to
the exclusive benefit of the participating ecmplovees and their beneficiaries.

NOTE 11, JOINT SERVICE AGREEMENT

The Authority entered into an Inter-local Agreement with the Town of Secaucus. The shared services
included plumbing, carpentry and painting. In 2018, the shared services also included purchasing,

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Sccaucus Municipal Utilitics Authority has evaluated subsequent events through fune 13,2019, the date
which the linancial statcments were available to be issued. No additional items were noted for disclosure
or adjustment,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secancus)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 13. DESIGNA'TION OF UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

The Authority maintains funds that, although may be spent for any lawful purpose by the Authority, have
been designated by the Board as follows:

018 0t7
Capital Improvements $1.000,000 $1.000,000

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Authorify reported a total amount of $1,000,000 of U nrestricted Net
Position - Designated for the purposes described above,

The remaining, undesignated portion of the Authority’s net position was compriscd of the following at
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

018 017
OPEB Related $(5,653,573) $(5,679,703)
Pension Related (4,081,351) (3,949,493}
Available for Use in Future Budgets 4.040.466 3,954,397

($5.694.458) (85.674,799)

NOTE 14. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

On January 1, 2018, the Authority adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
‘T'his statement requires, among other things, the recognition of unfurxled nct OPEB obligations and related
deferred outflows and inflows in the financial statements of an entity, As aresult, the following prior period
adjustments have been made on the 2017 financial statements:

Balance
12/31/2017 BRalance
as Previously Retroactive 127342017
Reported Adjustments as Resiated
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred OPEB-Related Costs 5 $834 $834
Liabilities:
Net OPEB Liability - 4,864,674 4,864,674
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred OPEB-Related Inflows - 815,863 815,863
Net Position:
Unrestricted: Undesignated 4,904 €5,679,703) (5,674,799}
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SCHEDULE RSI-1

SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
Last Five Fiseal Years

Measurement Date Ending June 30,

2018 2817 2016 2015 2014
Awthority's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.0193821700%  0.0179545791%  0.0178116326% 0.0173601274% 0.0159464216%
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension B
Liability 83,816,253 £4,179,539 55,275,295 $3,941,897 $2.985.606
Authority's Covered-Employee Payroll $1,404,.365 51,362,338 51,234,514 £1,227.489 $1.193,374
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability as a Percentage of it's Covered-Emplovee
Payroll 271.74% 306.79% 427 32% 321.14% 250.18%

Note:  This schedule 18 presented to illustrate the requirement {o show information for 10 vears.
Fowever, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will enly include information
for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE RS1-2

SECAUCUS MUNICTPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the Authority's Contributions
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually Required Contribution $174.810 5164 946 $156,970 $131.460 $128.034
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required

Contribution a74.81t) {164 .946) {150.970) {131.460) {128,034)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 5 - 5 - F - 5 - §F -
Autherity's Covered-Employee Payroll $1,404.365 $1.362,338 $1,234,514 $1,227 489 $1,193,374
Contributions as a Percentage of Authority's Covered-

Empiovee Payrolt 12.45% 12.11% 12.23% 16.71% 10.73%

Note: This schedule is presented 1o Hlustrate the requirement fo show information for 10 years.
However, until a tull [0-year trend 1s compiled, this presentation wilt only include information
for those vears for which information is available.




SCHEDULE RSI-3

SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Regquired Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the Authority's Proportionate
Sharc of the State OPEB Liability

Last Two Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost
Interest
Differcnce between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions
Benefit Payments
Contributions - Mcmbers
Change in Allocation
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Imployer
Contributions - Non-Employer Contribution Enfities
Contributions - Members
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense
Change in Allocation
Net Change in Plan Fidueiary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
I'fan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending

Authority's Net OPED Liability

2018

$207,694

177,068
(840,378)
(536.302)
(97,707

12,511
(134.913)
(1,212,027)

4,915,488

$3.7G3.461

il e By

97,608
12,400
12,511

538

(97.707)

(1,900)

{1.394)
22,065

50.814
72,879

$3.630,582

017
3253,655
154,506

(616,633)
(99,479)
12,768
(317.303)
(612,486)

5,527,974

$4.915.488

90,978
12,644
12,768
188
(99,479)
(2,119)
(2.182)
12,798

38,016
50.814

$4.864,674

*(FJASB requires that ten years of information be presented. However, since {iscal year 2017
was the first vear of GAST 75 implementation, ten years is not presented. Each year thereafter,
or additional year will be included until ten years of date is presented.
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Exhibit RSI-4

SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
Scheduie of Authority’s Share of Net GPEB Liability

L ast Two Fiscal Years™

2018 2017
Authority’s proportion of the net OPEB
tiahility (asset) 0.0231740000% 0.0238280000%
Authority's proportionate share of the net
QOPEB liability {(asset} $ 3,630,682 % 4 664,674
Authority's covered payroll $ 1,404,365 $ 1,362,338
Authority's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered payroil 258.52% 357.08%

* (3JASB requires that ten years of information be presented. However, until a full 10-year trend is com piled, this
presentation will only include information for these years for which information is available.
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Exhibit RSI-5

SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Schedules of Required Suppiementary Information

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually reguired contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Authority’s coverd payroll

Coniributions as a perceniage of
covered payrolt

* (JASB requires that ten years of information he presented. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this

Schedule of Authority's OPEB Contributions

Last Two Fiscal Years*

2018 2017
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
3 - $ -
$ 1,404,365 $ 1,362,338
N/A _ N/A

presentation will only include information for those years for which information is availahle.




SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year ended December 31, 2018

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

(Changes in Benefit Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 5.00% as of Junc 30, 2017 to 5.66% as
of Junc 30, 2018, in accordance with Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67,

Other Post-employment Benefits {OPER)

Changes in Benefit Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions - Assumptions used in calculating the OPER liability arc presented in
Note 7.
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Uperating Revenue:
Tewn of Sceaucns
Sewcr Connreetinn / Uscr Fees

Total Operating Fevenas

Operating BExpense:
Adsintstrative aod Geoeral
Cost of Providing Sendzes
Bepreciation

Totat Cperatiny Expense

Operating Inceme

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):
Interest and Miscollancows Income

Enterest hxpense
Amprtization

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Trausfers:

Badzet Appropriation

el Servioe Payments

Capital LExpenediturss

Transfers
Increase{Erecrease} in Net Position

MNei Position - Jar. 1, 2018, Restated

Net Position - Drecember 31, 2418

SECATUCUS MUNICIPAE UFILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNET OF THE TOWN OF SECALCLS}

SUITLEMENTAL SCIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CIHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR FHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

SCHIDULE |

Restricted Vnrestricted
Net Investment Debt Service Renewal and Bongd Redemption Besignated:
in Capital Reserve Heplacement and Emprovement Rebate Capital
Assets Fund ¥und Fund Fund Tmprovements & pnated Total
3,209 832 2683z
673,453 #7893
- - - - - 3.B83.72% 3.BRY.725
576 %63 T76.863
2255115 3775114
208,765 298765
208,765 - - - - 201977 4.100,742
{29 THS) - - - - - 2748 FITAN ¥
1,540 3 226 TH, 992 TH 763
(18.633) {18.633}
2,50 2504
2,504 (18,6333 1.540 5 peis - 76,952 62,634
(296.2613 (16,6333 1,580 5 TS - 158,740 {154,383}
157750 £15,750) -
80,337 {(BLE3T) -
34,103 £74.163) -
EheT (£2.025) 17540y -
(141,267) 1,041 5,265 ] 26 - (15,657 £154,383)
1967217 18,478 30,660 el 19,025 1,065,000 (56747949} {1,01% (59)
3425.550 sy 554925 3RS 19,251 1,260, 13 6%4 458) 11,171,447




Schedule 2

Page 1 of 2
SECAUCUS MUNTCIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS
UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2(H8
Runwal and Bend Redemption
Operating Dbt Servics Replacement and Improvement
Accounts Accounts Accounts Account

Cash, Cash Lguivalents and Investments -

January 1, 2018 5.513,518 27,226 50,660 366
Cash Receipts:

Town of Secaucus 3,200,832

Sewer Cunnection [ User Fees 672,393 1,500

Literest and biscelubcous incoime 74,368 399 3,763 5

Transfers 265,750
Total Cash Reveipts 3,956,593 399 271,013 5
Cash and Invesements Available 9,470,111 27,6238 321,675 365
Cash Dishursements:

Hond Principal Payments 80,837

Interest Payments 19,275

Operations 3,680,098

Capital and (her Fxpenses 74,163

Transfers 265 750
Tatal Cash Disbursements 4,120,123 - -
Cash, Cask Equivalents and luvestments -

December 31, 2018 5349988 27,625 321,675 165

Anulysis of Balance;
Cash and Cush Equivalents §.349.988 1,625 321,675 65

Tivestments - - - -

5,949,988 27625 321,675 65

Dnrestricted 5,349,948 - 255,750 -

Restricted - 27625 55925 363
5,349,988 27,625 32,675 KLY
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Cuash, Cash Equividents and Investments -
January ¥, 2648

Cush Keceipls:
Town of Sceaucus
Sewer Consection ¢ User Fees
Inderest vod Misvellunepus Income
Transfors

Tedal Cash Receipes

Cash and Esvestiments Avaitulde

Cash Disbursentents:
Bond Principal Payments
Interest Payments
Operations
Capital and Other Fxpenses
‘Fransfers

Tetal Cash THxbarsements

Cash, Cash Equivalents and invesiments -
December 31, 2018

Anakysis of Balances
Cash and Cush Eepuivalents

Invesiments

Tnrestricted
Resricted

Srhedule 2

Pape 2 of2
SECALCUS MUNICIPAL ETILLELES AUV THORITY
{A COMPONENT UNET OF TIIE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECETPTS, CASH DISBRURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES TN CASH ANII INVERTMENTS
UNRESTRICTED AND RESERICELD ACCOUNTS
FOR TUE YEAR ENDED DECTMBER 31, 2018
Rchate
Account Totul
13,025 2610789
3,209 832
673,893
226 TR763
265,750
226 4238258
13,251 9,835,027
¥, 837
15,275
3,680,098
74,163
265,750
- 4,124,123
19,251 5,718,904
19,251 5,718,904
19,251 5,718,504
- 5,615,738
19,251 103,166
19,251 5,718,904
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SCHEDBULE 3
Page 1 of 3

SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUE AND COSTS FUNDED
BY OPERATING REVENUE COMPARED TO BUDCET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2818

FY 2018 FY 2018
Adopted Budgel as Paid or Excess / Prior Year
Budget Amended Charged {Pelicit) Actual
Revenues:
Town of Secaucus 3,209.832 3,209 832 3.209 832 - 3,470,305
Connection and User Foes R36.000 836,000 73,893 {162,107} 1,889,582
Interest Income 2,560 2,304} 16351 43.851 16,989
Other Income 15,000 15,600 32,412 17,412 56,789
Grant Income - - - 150,000
Net Posttion Appropriated 360000 500,000 300,000 - 1.4486.060
. Total Operating Revenues 4,563,332 4,563,332 4,462 488 {100 844) 6983665
2
Expenses:
Operating Appropriations:
Administration:
Salarics and Wages 251945 251,945 237,836 {5.911) 250,371
Fringe Bencfits 130,600 130,000 112 882 17,118 138,616
Telephone 11,060 11,000 6,203 4,735 4,295
Trusice Fees 12 000 12000 4024 7,980 4,511
NIEIT Fees 6,000 6000 - 6,004 -
Legal Fees 100,000 140,660 86,355 13,445 59301
Acconnting and Auditing 43,000 43000 36,250 6,750 36,250
Office, Stationary, Postage and Miscellaneous 48 000 48,000 14783 3,217 49716
Serminars, Conventions and Travel 20,000 264,000 11,178 8822 14,201
Sub-fofal Administrative 621,945 621,945 559 789 62,156 328,761
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SCHEDULE 3

Page2 03
SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF FHE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUE AND COSTS FUNDED
BY OPERATING REVENUE COMPARED TOQ BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
FY 2018 FY 2018
Adopted Budget as Paid or Excess/ Prior Year
Budypet Amended Charged (Deficit) Actnal
Expenses {continued}:
Operating Appropriations (costinued):
Cost of Providing Services:

Salaries and Wages 1,343,306 1,343,306 1,270,810 72,496 1,248,616
Fringe Benefits 675,000 675,000 591,449 83,551 369,147
Electricity and Gas 300,000 300,000 226,357 73,643 228221
Water 20,000 20,000 19,426 574 25.563
Treatment Chemicals 85,000 85,000 75,814 9,186 63,035
Supplies and Equipment 85,000 85,000 TL,670 13,330 86,864
Engineering 150,000 150,000 162,370 (12,370) 161,858
Repairs and Maintenance 180,000 180,000 183,114 3,118 129 490
Sludge Disposal 300,000 300,000 219298 80,702 287,705
Testing Fees 46,000 40,000 12,854 27,146 51,719
Insurance 128,000 128,000 116,316 11,684 116,139
Laboratory Expenses 25,000 25,000 22,911 2 489 20,828
Permits 50.000 30,000 42,169 7.831 39.554
Garbage Disposal 45.000 45,000 46 8011 €1.301) 51,419
Uniforms 27,500 27,300 24,481 3,019 22,723
Sanitarv Sewer Repairs 370000 370,000 30,620 319,380 141,866
Sub-total Cost of Providing Services 3,823,806 3,823 806 3,136,460 687,346 3,204 749
Sub-total Operating 4,445 751 4,445,751 3,696,249 749,502 3,733,510




SCHEDULE 3
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Page30f3
SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUE AND COSTS FUNDED
BY OPERATING REVENUE COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
FY 2018 FY 2018
Adopted Budgel as Paid or Excess / Prior Year
Budget Amended Charged {Deficit) Actual
Other Costs Funded by Operating Revenues:
Debt Service:
Bond Principal 80,837 80,837 80,837 . 635,807
Interest Expense 20,994 20,994 18.633 2,361 30,766
Reserves: =
Renewat and Replacement 15,750 15,750 15,750 - 265,750
Sub-total Other Costs 117,381 117,581 115,220 2,361 932,323
Total Casts Funded by Operating Revenues 4.563.332 4,563,332 3,811,469 751,863 4.663,833
Add: Excess/ (Deficit) - - 651,019 631,019 2.317,832
4,563,332 4,563,332 4,462 488 100,844 6,983,665 -
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses: 651,019 2,317,832
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP:
Net Position Appropriated (500,000) (1,409,000%
Depreciation Expense (298,763) {348,942}
Amortization 2.504 2504
Net Pension Adjustment (131,858) (180,816)
Nect OPEB Adjustment 26,130
Raserves 15,750 265,750
Bong Principal 80.837 635,807
Total Adjusiments (805,402) (1,025,697)
Change in Net Position (154.383) 1,292,135 :




NCIIEDULE 4

SECAUCUS MUNTCTPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL BUDGYET PROGRAM
FUNDER BY FINANCING SOCRCES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

FY 2018 EY 2018
Adopted Buwilget as Paid or Eixcess /
Budget Amended Charged {Beficit)
Financing Sources:
Unrestricied Met P'osition 500,000 509, GOG 74,163 425,837
500,000 338,000 74,163 425 837
Capital Outloys:

Mise. Improvements/perades 566,000 366,600 74,163 425,837
Tetal Capital Qutlays 500,000 RAGEE 74,163 425 837
Total Costs Fanded by Capitsl Revenue SHLOOG 300,000 74,163 425,837
Add: Excess - - - -

S040,000 500,660 74,163 423 R¥7
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SCHEDYTES

Page 1 of 2
SECATICHS MUNICTPAL ETHLITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
Oistanding Maturitics
Prate of Interest Tecemboer 31, 2618 Balunce 2BEN Ralsnce
Dexcription Tssue Rate Date Arpount Jan. 1, 218 Tssued Redeenied Drec. 31, 2018
¥IEFT Bonds (Serics 201040 3102010
TFrust Portioen
4.60% 20k 35,000.00
5.00% 20 35,000,080
3.650% 2021 ERRETIRUT
4.66%% 2022 4000000
4 8% 2023 40,0600.00
3.00% 024 40, 600.06
4.00%% 2023 483, 000, 06
3.54% 2026 45, 000)_13¢
4.80% 227 AF 0000
3.0 2028 45.800.08
4.00% 223 56,60, 06
AE( 000 30,000 450,080
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SLCAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF TIIE TOWX OF SECAUCUS)
SCHEDULE OF REVERTE AND REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
Outstanding Maturities
Date of Interest December 31, 2618 Balance 2018 Balance
Deseriptiva Txyue Raute Dae Amenut Jan. 1, MM Essaed Redeemed Dec. 31, 2018
MIEIT Bouds (Series 20104) 3410420190
Fund Portion
na 201% 34 908 85
aofa 202! A4 908 83
nfa 2021 34,908 85
wa 2622 34.90:8.85
na 223 34,908.85
nfa 2024 34,908 85
nfa 2025 34,908 85
nia 2026 34,908.85
na 20527 34.908.85
e 2028 3490885
na 2029 34.909.13
414,906 24,909 383,997
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SECAUCTIS MUNHCIPAL UTILITTES AUTHORITY
A COMPONENT TINIT OF THE TOAWHK OF SECATCLS)
SCHERULE OF REVENUT AND REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
Outstanding Maturities
Date of Interest December 31, 2018 Balance 2018 Balance
Bescription Issue Rate Daie Amount Jan. 1, 2018 Issued Eedeemed Dec. 31, 2018
NIEIT Bonds (Scries 2013) 53072013
Trast Portion

1.3%% 2019 3 506 0}

1.66% 2020 3,950.00

1.90%% 023 40500

2.12% 022 4.092.00

231% 2023 4,178.08

2.444%% 2024 42754}

2.54% 2025 4.379.04)

2.92% 2026 4,450,400

3.01% 2027 4,622.00

3 68% 2028 4.761.00

1.15% 2029 4.967.00

321% 2030 5.062.00

327% 2051 5,224.40

3.32% 2032 4.425.0¢

66,132 3 856 62,276
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SECAUCES MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AVTYHORYTY
(A COMFONENT 1INTT OF THE TOWN OF SECAUCTS)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND REVENUE REFUNBING RONDS
Outstanding Mavurities
Date of Interest Deceraber 31, 2018 Balanse 2018 Balance
Bescription Jssme Fate Diate Amoupt Jano 1, 2HS Issued Kedeemed Dec. 31,2018
NIEIT Boads {Saries 2013) 55002013
Fund Poriton
n'a % 12072 654
n'a pitely] 1207284
n'a 2021 12.072.04
n'a 2022 12,072.04
n'a 2023 1207264
na 2024 12,0724
na 25 1207204
n'a 2026 12.072.04
na 027 12,072.04
na 2028 12072.04
na 2029 12,072.04
wa 2030 12.072.04
na 2031 1207204
n'a 2032 2.162.25
178,171 12,072 166,099
1,143,202 88,837 1062372
Cumreni Poriion 80,837 ¥3,%77
MNemcurment Pertion 1062372 276,495
1,143,209 1062372




ROSTER OF OFFICIALS AND REPORT ON SURETY BONDS

The following officials were in office at December 31, 2018:

Name

Fred Vogel

Jorge Cardenas

George Schoenrock

Mark Molougimey

Raymond Spellmever

Amanda Nesheiwat

Jemnifer Modi

Brian Bigler

Beckmeyer Engincering

Cleary, Giacobbe, Alfieri, Jacobs, LLC
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Office

President

Vice President
Secretary

Treasurer
Commissioner

Ist Alternate

2nd Allernate
Executive Director
Consulting lingineers
Giencral Counscl
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Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, AMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanague Avenue 100B Main Strest
James J. Cerullo, GPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, BMA Fax 973-B35-6631 Fax 973-579-7128

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROIL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority
1100 Kocelle Bouulevard

Sccaucus, New Jersey 07094

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department
of Community Affairs, State of New Jerscy: and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Governmeni Auditing Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
stalements of the Sccaucus Municipal Utilities Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2018, and the related notes fo the financial statements, and have 1ssued our report thercon dated June 13,
2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing owr audit on the financial statements, we considered the Sccaucus Municipal
Ultilities Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedurcs that are appropriate in the circumstanccs for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statemcnts, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Secaucus
Municipal Utilities Authority’s internal control. Accerdingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Secaucus Municipal Ulilities Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employecs, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonuble possibility that a material
misstatement of the entily’s financial statements will not be preveated, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in internal control
that is less severe than a matcrial weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

FWCC
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Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority
Page 2.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not desipned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesscs or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencics in internal control that we consider to bc material weaknesses. IHowever, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Secaucus Municipal Utilitics Authority’s
financial statcments are frec of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cettain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
adirect and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with thosc provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that arc required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not {o providc an opinion on the effectiveness of the eniity’s internal
control or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordancc with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance, Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

G, Gty Lo A

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A,
Certified Public Accountanis
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

June 13, 2019
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTIHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Avreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 40A:11-3

NJS.A. 40A:11-2 contains definitions for terms used throughout N.ILS.A. 40A:11-1 et scq. and was
amended under P.L. 1999, ¢.440. Tt includes as subscetion (23) the term ‘competitive contracting’, which
is defined as “the method described in scotions 1 through 5 of P.L. 1999, ¢.440 (C.40:11-4.1 through
C.40A:11-4.5) of contracting for specialized goods and services in which formal proposals are solicited from
vendors, formal proposals are evaluated by the purchasing agent or counsel; and the governing body awards
4 comtract to a vendor or vendors from among the formal proposals received.”

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-3 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to raisc the bid threshold and require award by
governing body resotution. “When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in the
aggregate does not exceed in a contract year the sum of $40,000, the contract may be awarded by a
purchasing agent when so authorized by ordinance or resolution as appropriate to the contracting unit, of
the governing hody of the conlracting unit without public advertising for bids and bidding therelore, except
(hat the governing body may adopt an ordinance or resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipt of
public bids or the solicitation of competitive quotations.”

N.LS.AL40A:11-15 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to extend the basc contract period. “Any contract
made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months, except that contracts
for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5 may be awarded
for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months,

The governing body ol the Authority has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any
category will exceed the statuory threshold within the contract year. Where question arises as to whether
any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the opinion of the Authority’s atiorney
should be soughi beforc a commitment is made.

Tasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categorics for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an
accumulation could not rcasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine
whether any clear-cut violations existed.

The resulis of our examination indicated that no individual payments, contracts, or agreements were made
“for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies,” in excess of the
statuiory thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of
N.JLS. AL 40A:11-4.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contract or agreements for “Prolessional Services”
per N.J.S.AL 40ATT-5,
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SECAUCUS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Town of Secaucus)

Problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our ability
to express an opinion on the financial statcments taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments and recommendations, or should you desire assistance in
implementing our recommendations, do not hesitate to call us.

We wish to thank Secaucus Municipal Utilities Authority for their cooperation during the performance of
our audit.

Respectfully submitted,

Qo U
g:’aﬁi“zci?'tlﬂijﬂkﬁ ﬁejl
FERRATOLL, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, T A

Certifted Public Accountanis
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey
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